
City of 
Bellevue                               MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE: April 15, 2009 
  
TO: Bellevue Planning Commission 
  
FROM: Paul Inghram AICP, Comprehensive Planning Manager 452-4070 

pinghram@bellevuewa.gov 
Nicholas Matz AICP, Senior Planner 452-5371 
nmatz@bellevuewa.gov 
 

SUBJECT: April 22, 2009, Public Hearings on 2009 Annual Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment Threshold Review and Site-specific Geographic Scoping 
 

• Newport Professional Buildings 09-104623 AC 
• Kinoshita 09-104700 AC 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 
On April 22, 2009, the Planning Commission will hold public hearings to consider the 2009 
applications for CPA under Threshold Review.  The Planning Commission is asked to 
recommend by motion those applications that should be initiated for Comprehensive Plan 
amendment under LUC 20.30I.140.  The Commission is also asked to recommend by motion on 
geographic scoping under LUC 20.30I.130.A.1.a.ii. 
 
Sample motion language (for reference):  I move to recommend initiation/no further consideration 
of the name CPA application for the 2009 Annual Comprehensive Plan amendment process, and 
expand/not expand through geographic scoping to include the named propert[ies]. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The 2009 List of Initiated Applications has been established to consider amendments to the 
Comprehensive Plan.  The List is the tool the city uses to consider proposals to amend the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Such consideration is limited to an annual process under the state GMA. 
 
Threshold Review action produces proposed amendments for the annual CPA work program.  
This 2009 annual CPA work program consists of four steps: 
 
1. Planning Commission study sessions and public hearings to recommend whether initiated 

proposals should be considered for Comprehensive Plan amendment (March-April); 
2. City Council action on Planning Commission recommendations to establish the annual work 

program (May*); 
3. Planning Commission study sessions and public hearings to consider and recommend on 

proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendments (summer-fall); 
4. City Council action on Planning Commission recommendations to adopt amendments (fall). 
 
(*Please note:  The City Council will also act at this time on staff requests to initiate an 
amendment to the Capital Facilities Element updating references to the current Capital 



Investment Program (CIP) and to initiate an amendment to the Transportation Element at 
Figure TR.2—Travel Demand Forecasts.  If Council initiates these amendments they will become 
part of the 2009 annual CPA work program, and the Planning Commission will review them 
through Final Review.) 
 
THRESHOLD REVIEW DECISION CRITERIA 
 
The Threshold Review Decision Criteria for a proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment are set 
forth in the Land Use Code in Section 20.30I.140.  Based on the criteria, Department of Planning 
and Community Development staff is recommending that none of the site-specific applications 
should be included in the 2009 annual CPA work program.  These recommendations are 
explained in the staff reports included here in Attachments 1-2.  You do not need to bring your 
April 2 copies of the staff reports to the April 22, 2009, hearing. 
 

Staff Recommendation Summary 
CPA Application 

Site-specific 
Description of Applicant Proposals 

Subarea 

Attachment 
Staff recommendation 

Geographic scoping 

Newport Professional 
Building 

09 104623 AC 

Map change of 0.62 acres from PO (Professional Office) 
to CB (Community Business) with development 

conditions to be realized through rezone 
4307 and 4317 Factoria Boulevard SE 

Factoria 

Attachment 1 
No 

Expand geographic 
scope to include 4301 

Factoria Boulevard SE 

Kinoshita 
09 104700 AC 

Map change of 0.57 acres from SF-H (Single Family-
High) to MF-M (Multifamily-Medium) 

1429 Bellevue Way SE 
Southwest Bellevue 

Attachment 2 
No 

Do not expand 
geographic scope 

 
 
ISSUES IDENTIFIED DURING FEBRUARY 25, 2009, STUDY SESSION 
 
Planning Commissioners directed staff to research several application issues after their February 
25, 2009, study session introducing the CPAs. 
 
Newport Professional Building 
 
1. Commissioner Sheffels asked how a development condition would restrict ground floor 

commercial uses in a redeveloped building. 
 

The applicant has proposed a development condition that would exclude retail uses from the 
ground floor of a building or buildings developed under Community Business.  Office and 
residential uses would predominate under the applicant’s proposal, although retail uses would 
be allowed on upper floors.  The applicant has also proposed an affordable housing 
component as a development condition, to ensure some level of housing affordability in 
residential land uses here.  The presumption of affordability is that residents would meet 
qualifying median income standards. 
 
A development condition could be implemented with a CPA recommendation.  It would be 
awkward, because it means some combination of policy amendments, zoning conditions, and 



code amendments for a single site, and for what otherwise would be a simple map change.  
The city has adopted policy language in somewhat similar circumstances to inform future 
actions specific to a site or geographically-defined area.  Recent examples of this include 
Sambica (2008), Wilburton-Gateway (2006), and Botch (2003).  However, there is another 
consideration in attaching such specificity in development conditions to a CPA map change.  
Restricting commercial retail uses in a CB district is inconsistent with the underlying 
commercial use designation intended to allow these range of uses. 

 
2. Commissioner Robertson asked what a dimensional analysis under existing PO and proposed 

CB designation would show, including the maximum building “envelope” and building 
heights to the street level. 

 
Under any non-residential designation for these parcels, the combinations of small lot size, 
historical circumstance, and the location between Newport High and Factoria Boulevard 
makes maximizing redevelopment difficult.  Dimensional requirements for setbacks, allowed 
building heights, parking, landscaping, Transition Area, and existing parcel-to-parcel 
agreements for access easements and signage, all combine to diminish the relative 
differences in comparing various building envelopes. 

 
Professional Office 
A PO designation could produce a building of two stories up to 30 feet high.  The height as 
viewed from Factoria Boulevard would be affected by the slope of the properties to the west 
down from street level.  The setback from property lines would be 30 feet from Factoria 
Blvd, 30 feet from Newport High School boundaries (due to Transition), and 20 feet from 
Factoria Dental.  The maximum total building area would be approximately 19,200 square 
feet. 

 
Community Business 
A CB designation could produce a building of three stories up to 45 feet high.  As with PO, 
the height as viewed from Factoria Boulevard would be affected by the slope of the 
properties to the west down from street level.  The setback from property lines would be 0 
feet (10 foot-landscaping only) from Factoria Blvd, 30 feet from Newport High School 
boundaries (due to Transition), and 8 feet from Factoria Dental.  The maximum total building 
area would be approximately 43,000 square feet. 
 
Summary of the two designations 
For both PO and CB designations, the feasible building area is likely less than the building 
area allowed through the combination of Transition building height and setback limits. The 
space needed for required parking and the 0.5 FAR office maximum limit the ability of the 
parcels to achieve the total floor area allowed.  Existing access agreements between the three 
parcels will also likely influence any redevelopment. 

 
3. Commissioner Robertson asked for a comparison of the CPA “history” of the site versus St. 

Margaret’s. 
 

The buildings on the two parcels were built in 1963 (Lorge), 1923 and 1979 (Benis).  The 
Factoria Dental building was built in 1982.  All three properties were annexed in 1994.  The 
Factoria Area D CPA amended the Comprehensive Plan from SF-H to PO in 1997. 



SE 14TH STE 14TH STSE 14TH STSE 14TH STSE 14TH ST

BELLEVU
E W

Y SE

BELLEVU
E W

Y SE

BELLEVU
E W

Y SE

BELLEVU
E W

Y SE

BELLEVU
E W

Y SE

10
5T

H
 A

V
E

 S
E

1 0
5T

H
 A

V
E

 S
E

10
5 T

H
 A

V
E 

SE
10

5 T
H

 A
VE

 S
E

10
5 T

H
 A

V
E

 S
E

H STH STH STH STH ST

SF-HSF-HSF-HSF-HSF-H

SF-HSF-HSF-HSF-HSF-H

SF-MSF-MSF-MSF-MSF-M

MF-LMF-LMF-LMF-LMF-LSF-URSF-URSF-URSF-URSF-UR

MF-MMF-MMF-MMF-MMF-M

MF-MMF-MMF-MMF-MMF-M
POPOPOPOPO

MF-LMF-LMF-LMF-LMF-L
NBNBNBNBNB

 
St. Margaret’s was built in 1969 (the annex building was built in 2001).  The property was 
annexed in 2001.  The St. Margaret’s CPA amended the Comprehensive Plan from SF-H to 
MF-H in 2007, after the applicant first proposed CB. 

 
4. Commissioner Robertson asked for clarification of the third property owner’s intent in 

participating in the CPA process via expansion of geographic scoping. 
  

Dr. Cole Sherwood owns Factoria Dental--third building to the northwest.  He opposes being 
included in the CPA, and his comments are included in his letter attached to the Newport 
Professional Building staff report in Attachment 1. 
 

Kinoshita 
 

1. Commissioner Ferris asked for information regarding property surrounding Kinoshita and its 
suitability for inclusion in the expansion of geographic scope. 
 
Since the February 25, 2009, study session property both to the north and to the south of 
Kinoshita have requested inclusion in the expansion of the geographic scope of the proposal.  
The Bryant property to the north made their request in writing and it is included in the staff 
recommendation and analysis.  The Bishop property to the south made a telephone request to 
be included after the staff report was published. 
 
Property description Total size in sf 
Kinoshita CPA properties:    21,300, 9,500, and 2,613 (portion) 
Kinoshita-owned property designated MF-M: 20,500 
Bryant properties for geographic expansion: 11,500 and 13,700 
Bishop property for geographic expansion: 21,800 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Bishop property                    for 
expansion of geographic scope 

Bryant properties                   for 
expansion of geographic scope 

Kinoshita CPA  

Kinoshita-owned 



 
2. Finally, Commissioner Robertson requested a copy of the July 23, 2003, Planning 

Commission minutes on the Botch CPA, designated SF-UR one block north of the Kinoshita 
proposal and now a CamWest development.  These minutes are included as Attachment 3 to 
this memo. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE AND COMMENT 
 
The applications were introduced to the Planning Commission during a study session on 
February 25, 2009.  Notice of the Applications was published in the Weekly Permit Bulletin 
on March 12, 2009, and mailed and posted as required by LUC 20.35.420.  Notice of the 
April 22, 2009, Public Hearing before the Planning Commission was published in the 
Weekly Permit Bulletin on April 2, 2009. 
 
The Department of Planning and Community Development (PCD) contacted listed owners of 
property that would be affected by the expanded geographic scoping recommendation for the 
Newport Professional Building CPA.  The Department was contacted by listed owners of 
property wishing to be included by expanding the geographic scope of the Kinoshita CPA. 
 
Public comments that have been received to date are included at the end of each Attachment. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Each attachment contains a staff report recommendation, vicinity map, geographic scoping 
map, the applicant’s application materials, and any written public comments that have been 
received to date. 
 
1. Newport Professional Building CPA materials 
2. Kinoshita CPA materials 
3. Botch CPA 7/23/2003 Planning Commission meeting minutes 
4. Threshold Review Decision Criteria (LUC 20.30I.140) and Consideration of Geographic 

Scoping (LUC 20.30I.130.A.1.a.ii) 



















































































































































































  1

CITY OF BELLEVUE 
BELLEVUE PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
July 23, 2003 Bellevue City Hall
7:00 p.m. City Council Conference Room
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chair Schiring, Vice-Chair Lynde, Commissioners Bach, 

Bonincontri, Chelminiak, Mathews, Robertson 
 
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: None 
 
STAFF PRESENT:    Kathleen Burgess, Emil King, Steve Cohn, Department of 

Planning and Community Development  
 
GUEST SPEAKERS:   None 
 
RECORDING SECRETARY: Gerry Lindsay 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. by Chair Schiring who presided. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Upon the call of the roll, all Commissioners were present. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved by consensus. 
 
4. STAFF REPORTS 
 
Kathleen Burgess, Planning Manager, reported that the Council held a study session at its July 
21 meeting on the wireless issue.  While no decision was made, it appears the Council will adopt 
the recommendation of the Planning Commission.  The Mayor expressed her deep gratitude for 
the work of the Commission on the subject.   
 
Ms. Burgess said the Council had a briefing on the critical areas update at its June 30 meeting.  
The Council was very complimentary regarding the work done by the CAC.  The issue was 
passed on to the Planning Commission for review and recommendation; that work will begin 
after the August break.   
 
 A. Interpreting Changed Circumstances for CPAs 
 
Ms. Burgess said one of the decision criteria for Comprehensive Plan amendments is the issue of 
changed circumstances, something that is not always clear.  She explained that not every change 
meets the changed circumstances criteria.  The Comprehensive Plan is a document that plans for 
change over time as policies and regulations are implemented through both public and private 
investment.  Such changes are foreseen by the Comprehensive Plan and as such are not 
considered to be changed circumstances.   
 



  2

Under the adopted process, proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments must first be docketed.  
At that stage the applicant must address the changed circumstances criterion.  There is little staff 
analysis during that phase.  At the decision stage, applicants must show changed circumstances, 
and staff prepares a report that looks at the rate and timing of growth, the time passed since the 
area was last reviewed, housing targets and infrastructure.  In part staff looks to determine if the 
implementation of the policies and regulations, or the lack of implementation in some cases, has 
resulted in a change not foreseen by the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
In 2002 the Albright CPA was before the Commission seeking a change from Single Family-
Low to Single Family-Medium.  The applicant proposed, and the Commission agreed, that the 
connection of Lakemont Boulevard to I-90, even though it was foreseen and planned for in the 
Comprehensive Plan, resulted in rapid change in the Lakemont area that was not foreseen by the 
Comprehensive Plan.  The determination was made that in fact there had been a changed 
circumstance.  When application was made to expand the uses allowed in the General 
Commercial zone, it was claimed by the applicant that the mix of allowed uses was not working 
and that the general economy was stagnating; in that instance the Commission concurred that the 
change in the economy represented a changed circumstance. 
 
Ms. Burgess commented that growth of an area is not necessarily a changed circumstance; if the 
Comprehensive Plan anticipated the growth, it is not a changed circumstance.  Some applicants 
have claimed that because a particular subarea plan has not been updated in several years the 
changes that have occurred meet the changed circumstances criteria, but if the Comprehensive 
Plan is being carried out as anticipated the test cannot be met.  Determining changed 
circumstance is often less of a science and more of an art.   
 
Chair Schiring pointed out that a legal decision, such as a change in the Growth Management 
Act (GMA), could result in a changed circumstance.   
 
Commissioner Bach asked how often the housing supply and affordability provisions of the 
GMA are revised.  Ms. Burgess allowed that the GMA is changed from time to time.  For 
instance, the planning to expand SR-520 and I-90 is something in which the city is very 
involved.  As those plans come to fruition, the Comprehensive Plan may need to be amended in 
part as the land use impacts may change.  The GMA sets specific housing targets for each 
jurisdiction, and some applicants have argued that those requirements justify an increase in 
density beyond that anticipated in the Comprehensive Plan.  However, the Comprehensive Plan 
has been geared to accommodate the established housing targets and as such they cannot be used 
to prove changed circumstances.   
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT - None 
 
6. COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY COUNCIL, COMMUNITY COUNCIL, BOARDS 

AND COMMISSIONS - None 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 A. 2003 Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
  – Botch Family 
 
Emil King, Senior Planner, said the privately initiated Comprehensive Plan Amendment for the 
1.03-acre site on Bellevue Way SE seeks a change from Single Family-High to Multifamily-
Low.  He said staff does not believe the Multifamily-Low is appropriate for the site and has 
recommended Single Family-Urban Residential which has an associated  zoning of R-7.5.  The 



  3

staff recommendation includes a proposal that any future development on the site be limited to 
single family detached units, and that the unit sizes be limited to 2,500 square feet to fit better 
with the established neighborhood.   
 
Commissioner Chelminiak asked if the city has in the past acted to limit the size of structures as 
proposed.  Mr. King said it has not been done before in Bellevue.  The practice has over the last 
five years become much more common in surrounding jurisdictions, especially with respect to 
cottage and small-lot single family developments.   
 
Commissioner Chelminiak commented that with a limit of 2,500 square feet the property could 
yield six or seven lots.  He asked if the issue is one of scale.  Mr. King said the site is fairly flat 
and under the current zoning could yield roughly four 10,000-square-foot lots; a large single 
family home could be constructed on each lot.  Limiting the size of the structures would bring 
about homes much more in keeping with the development of the neighborhood.  Four lots with 
homes of 4,000 square feet each would mean an FAR of about 0.38.  With seven or eight units at 
2,500 square feet each the FAR would be slightly higher but within the same general range.  The  
bulk would just be split among more structures.  Staff did not feel that simply allowing a higher 
density without capping the size of the structures would be compatible with the neighborhood, 
most of which was developed in the 1950s and 1960s.   
 
Commissioner Chelminiak noted that the owner of an adjacent property could sell to a builder 
who would be allowed to redevelop to the maximum limit permitted by the code, which could be 
a much larger home than 2,500 square feet.  Mr. King agreed.  He pointed out that there are very 
few single family uses fronting Bellevue Way between downtown and the intersection with 112th 
Avenue SE. 
 
Motion to open the public hearing was made by Commissioner Bonincontri.  Second was by 
Commissioner Chelminiak and the motion carried unanimously.  
 
Ms. Colleen Dunseath, 1410 104th Avenue SE, spoke in opposition to the proposed amendment.  
She said there is plenty of housing in the city and more on the way; an increase in density for the 
subject property is simply not needed.  The older neighborhood is well established, and though 
the homes are relatively small the lots are relatively large.  The claim has been made that smaller 
homes might be more affordable, but just recently a small house close by sold, was then torn 
down, and the home being built there now will be valued at $879,000, hardly an affordable 
home.  The neighborhood will gain nothing if the amendment is approved, with or without a size 
restriction.   
 
Mr. Brock Dunseath, 1410 104th Avenue SE, said the home he now lives in was purchased new 
in 1950 by his father who moved the family to Bellevue in order to provide a better life.  The lot 
is large with plenty of room for kids to play, as are most of the lots in the neighborhood.  The 
Botch property should be developed under its current zoning.  That would mean four homes on 
rather large lots.  He allowed that that could mean construction of very large homes on the lots, 
and an increase in property taxes for all properties in the area.  What is really needed is an 
approach that will fit with the existing neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Mike Taylor, 9 Lake Bellevue Drive, Suite 213, spoke on behalf of the Botch family.  He 
said the original application was for a higher density.  The decision to seek Single Family-Urban 
Residential was made after talking with staff and is a supportable position.  If a limit is imposed 
on the size structures, however, the limit should be tied to living space and not total structure 
space.  The property fronts Bellevue Way where there is a large volume of traffic.  A 
development at R-7.5 would provide a nice transition from Bellevue Way to the single family 



  4

developments.  Access to the site is anticipated to be from SE 14th Street.  Whether or not homes 
constructed on the site will be affordable is something the market will control.  He urged the 
Commission to support the amendment as proposed.   
 
Motion to close the public hearing was made by Commissioner Lynde.  Second was by 
Commissioner Bonincontri and the motion carried unanimously.  
 
8. STUDY SESSION 
 
  A. 2003 Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
  – Botch Family 
 
Commissioner Mathews asked if the 2,500 square foot limit as proposed would apply even if the 
property owner chose to develop at less than the maximum density allowed.  Mr. King said if a 
maximum size limit is adopted, it would apply regardless of the number of lots ultimately 
achieved on the site.  Mr. King added that if the limit is for living space only, the size of any 
garage would not be included; as such the overall development size per home would be closer to 
3,000 square feet.   
 
Answering a question asked by Commissioner Lynde regarding establishing a size limit, Mr. 
King explained that it could be achieved by putting a special policy in the subarea plan, or by 
making it a condition of the plan change and have it occur during the rezone process.   
 
Chair Schiring asked how many units could be achieved under the current zoning, and he was 
told by Mr. King that the site could yield four units.   
 
Commissioner Lynde said she liked in concept the idea of Single Family-Urban Residential for 
the site and the size limitation of 2,500.  However, every public comment letter received has 
been opposed to the change for various reasons.  She said she would be inclined to support the 
desires of the residents over the staff recommendation.  Mr. King pointed out that the written 
public comments all were received prior to issuance of the staff report calling for Single Family-
Urban Residential and the size limits.  He allowed, however, that the concerns raised may still be 
valid.   
 
Commissioner Chelminiak praised staff for trying to find the middle ground and succeeding.  He 
stated, however, that he agreed with Commissioner Lynde, adding that he was bothered by the 
notion of establishing a size limit.  While the concept is valid, no future owner of any home built 
with the size limit would ever be able to remodel and add on space.  The zoning as it currently 
exists is the zoning that matches the uses that are part of the Comprehensive Plan.  There has 
been no rush to in-fill in the surrounding areas with multifamily, and for those reasons the 
request should be denied.   
 
Commissioner Bach noted that many of the letters received from the public commented on the 
number of vehicle trips that could result from approval of the proposed amendment.  A 
multifamily development on the site would create fewer new trips than the Single Family-Urban 
Residential recommendation.  Construction of a home facing Bellevue Way, however, may not 
be all that desirable; most developments along Bellevue Way are in fact multifamily.  There is a 
need for buffers between high-traffic areas and residential areas, and the Single Family-Urban 
Residential recommendation provides for that.   
 
Commissioner Robertson concurred, especially with the notion of allowing a little greater 
density with a size limitation would provide a buffer to Bellevue Way.  She expressed an interest 



  5

in what the neighborhood comments would be for the proposal as it has been downwardly 
revised with respect to density.  She said she would think some would prefer to have smaller 
single family homes on the property as opposed to only four potentially large homes.   
 
Commissioner Bonincontri added her voice to those recommending denial of the application.  
She allowed that Bellevue Way is a very busy street but said there are many design mechanisms 
available to provide screening and minimize the impacts.  Much will depend on how the site is 
subdivided and where the buildings are placed.  Adding more lots, even with a building size 
limit, will not necessarily fit in better with the neighborhood, especially as the neighborhood 
may change over time with redevelopment.   
 
Chair Schiring stressed the uniqueness of the neighborhood.  He said his preference would be to 
deny the proposal and retain the present zoning, allowing the market to determine what kind of 
homes should be constructed there.   
 
Motion to recommend denial of the 2003 Comprehensive Plan Amendment for the Botch Family 
site was made by Commissioner Chelminiak; second was by Commissioner Bonincontri.   
 
Commissioner Mathews observed that under the present zoning there could be four homes on the 
large lots, and those homes may be large enough to take up the same amount of space as six 
homes limited to 2,500 square feet.  Approving the proposal will yield smaller scale homes that 
will better fit with the existing nature of the neighborhood.   
 
Commissioner Lynde said she was not willing to set a precedent that moves the city closer to 
micromanagement of sites.  The pace of development or character of a neighborhood cannot be 
legislated effectively, nor should it be.  There is nothing stopping property owners within the 
area from selling their properties and seeing them redevelop with larger homes.  She added that 
more density next to a very busy street is not necessarily a good buffer.   
 
The motion to recommend denial of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment carried 4-3, with Chair 
Schiring and Commissioners Chelminiak, Bonincontri and Lynde voting FOR, and 
Commissioners Bach, Robertson and Mathews voting AGAINST. 
 
 B. Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Code Amendments 
  – I-405 OLB Auto Sales 
 
Steve Cohn, Associate Planner, noted that the only place along 116th in the OLB zone where auto 
sales are not permitted is the site on which City Hall currently is located.  The proposed 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment seeks to amend a policy in the Wilburton Subarea Plan that 
would allow auto sales in the OLB zone on the sites south of Main Street.  The Comprehensive 
Plan amendment will be accompanied by a Land Use Code Amendment that amends the 
Footnote to refer to the same geographic area.  The amendments are focused on a specific area of 
the city and not to all OLB properties.   
 
Continuing, Mr. Cohn observed that the Land Use Element and Economic Element contain 
policies that talk about changing the code as necessary over time to sustain a strong economic 
climate.  In the Urban Design Element there is a policy that applies to the City Hall site as well 
as others along the freeway and says that regardless of allowed uses certain design criteria must 
be met.  In 1996 when the idea of allowing auto sales along the freeway in the OLB district was 
reviewed, there was discussion and adoption of specific design criteria for such uses.  The 
LUCA implementing the Urban Design policy only applies to new auto dealers, of which there 
have been none since adoption of the policies.   



  6

 
A preliminary review of the facts suggest that there have been changing circumstances since this 
issue was last reviewed. The new SE 8th off-ramp from I-405 causes 116th Avenue to be viewed 
as a gateway corridor. The recent decision to move the City Hall campus to Downtown is also a 
changed circumstance. 
 
Mr. Cohn commented that in 1996 when the policies were last updated the intent of the City 
Council was for City Hall to remain located where it is.  For that reason the subarea plan map 
has a PF, or public facilities, designation shown for the City Hall campus.  In considering the 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment, part of the recommendation should be to remove the PF 
designation from the map.   
 
Answering a question asked by Commissioner Chelminiak, Mr. Cohn said the Wilburton area 
study conducted recently looked at the City Hall campus site and determined that it is 
appropriate for hotel, office or auto sales.  There was consideration given to allowing a sports 
stadium in the OLB district adjacent to the freeway, but there was no support for the notion and 
it was taken off the table.  He added that the results of the Wilburton study will be presented to 
the City Council on August 4.   
 
Chair Schiring noted that the current City Hall property serves as a gateway and commented that 
auto sales may not be the best use for the site.  He added, however, that all of the properties 
along the corridor should be open to the same uses.   
 
There was consensus to set a public hearing on the matter for September 17.   
 
9. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 A.  June 18, 2003 
 
Referring to the fourth paragraph on page 31, Commissioner Robertson noted that in the second 
sentence “…such criteria may not be necessary…” should read “…such criteria may be 
necessary….” 
 
Motion to approve the minutes as amended was made by Commissioner Robertson.  Second was 
by Commissioner Bonincontri and the motion carried unanimously.  
 
10. OLD BUSINESS – None 
 
11. NEW BUSINESS – None 
 
12. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Ms. Renay Bennett, 826 108th Avenue SE, said she was impressed with the deliberations 
regarding the Botch Family property.  She suggested that when the staff recommendation differs 
from materials sent to the neighbors, there should be a real effort to send out new information so 
everyone is on the same page.   
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chair Schiring adjourned the meeting at 8:03 p.m. 



 

ATTACHMENT 4 
 
20.30I.140 Threshold Review Decision Criteria 
 
The Planning Commission may recommend inclusion of a proposed amendment to the 
Comprehensive Plan in the Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendment Work Program if 
the following criteria have been met: 
 
A. The proposed amendment presents a matter appropriately addressed through the 

Comprehensive Plan; and 
B. The proposed amendment is in compliance with the three year limitation rules set 

forth in LUC 20.30I.130.A.2.d; and 
C. The proposed amendment does not raise policy or land use issues that are more 

appropriately addressed by an ongoing work program approved by the City 
Council; and 

D. The proposed amendment can be reasonably reviewed within the resources and 
time frame of the Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendment Work Program; and 

E. The proposed amendment addresses significantly changed conditions since the last 
time the pertinent Comprehensive Plan map or text was amended. Significantly 
changed conditions are defined as: 

 
LUC 20.50.046 Significantly changed conditions.  Demonstrating evidence of 
change such as unanticipated consequences of an adopted policy, or changed 
conditions on the subject property or its surrounding area, or changes related to 
the pertinent Plan map or text; where such change has implications of a 
magnitude that need to be addressed for the Comprehensive Plan to function as 
an integrated whole.  This definition applies only to Part 20.30I Amendment and 
Review of the Comprehensive Plan (LUC 20.50.046); and 

 
F. When expansion of the geographic scope of an amendment proposal is being 

considered, shared characteristics with nearby, similarly-situated property have 
been identified and the expansion is the minimum necessary to include properties 
with those shared characteristics; and 

G. The proposed amendment is consistent with current general policies in the 
Comprehensive Plan for site-specific amendment proposals.  The proposed 
amendment must also be consistent with policy implementation in the 
Countywide Planning Policies, the Growth Management Act, other state or 
federal law, and the Washington Administrative Code; or 

H. State law requires, or a decision of a court or administrative agency has directed 
such a change. 

 
(ii) Consideration of Geographic Scope 
 
Prior to the public hearing, the Planning Commission shall review the geographic scope 
of any proposed amendments.  Expansion of the geographic scope may be recommended 
if nearby, similarly-situated property shares the characteristics of the proposed 
amendment’s site.  Expansion shall be the minimum necessary to include properties with 
shared characteristics… 


